U.S. Department of Labor Employment and Training Administration
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20210

AUG 3 0 2017

The Honorable Paul LePage
Governor of Maine

1 State House Station
Augusta, Maine 04333

Dear Governor LePage:

Thank you for your July 11, 2017 (copy enclosed) letter in which you requested to merge
Maine’s existing local workforce development areas into a single-local area encompassing the
entire State. This letter constitutes the Employment and Training Administration’s (ETA)
response to your request.

ETA recognizes Maine’s outreach to rural areas of the State as well as the challenges associated
with serving rural communities. Unfortunately, we are unable to approve your request. WIOA
Sec. 189(1)(3)(A)(i) explicitly prohibits the Secretary from waiving any statutory or regulatory
requirements relating to the establishment and function of local areas and/or the allocation of
funds to local areas. Additionally, 20 CFR 679.270(a) provides that only “[the] Governor of any
State that was a single-State local area under the WIA as in effect on July 1, 2013 may designate
the State as a single-State local area under WIOA.” There are currently no statutory or
regulatory procedures for a State with multiple local workforce development areas to become a
single-area State.

If you have additional questions, please contact Holly O’Brien, Regional Administrator, at (617)
788-0170 or OBrien.Holly(@dol.gov.

Sincerely,

Byron Zuidema
Deputy Assistant Secretary

Enclosure

cc:
John Butera, Commissioner, Maine Department of Labor

Holly O’Brien, Regional Administrator, ETA Boston Regional Office
Jeremy Dondlinger, Federal Project Officer, ETA Boston Regional Office
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July 11,2017

The Honorable R Alexander Acosta, Secretary of Labor

(.8, Department Of Labor _ - L
200 Constitution Ave, NW . -
Washington DC 20210 8

Dlear Seorvtary Acost,

fam wiiting o rejuest hat. for the purposes of the Workforee Innovation & Opportunity A

prograin. Maine be granted single State focul area designation.

Ihe current comtfivuration of Maine's workloree development systent was estahlished in 1998
ander the Workforee Investment Act. With no experience administering or delivering this new
progran. Maine made decisions about lucal aveas and hoards that seemed correct at the tine. In
hindsight. we now realize we should have chosen differently and been designuied as a sigle
State locad area. ke the other states of similar population size.

Becwase the lederal lunding formula reguires we allocate the [tnds by populat on, wie hurt our
ahility 1o wrget it estment in the ruval areas that need help the most and have -he least geeess to
more diverse education and training programs as well as a strong weehnology infastracture.
Pheve is corrently a geographic mismatch: industries in decline are dispropovtionately in rural

regtons whife dustries that are growing are disproportionately in citivs,

Adjusting the tootprint of Maine's workforee development system o a single State focal area
will allow more funding to be wtilized for skills training for eitizens. versus beng ased for
program administration by multiphe pass-thru organizations.

Floxibiling is newdid w respond o var economie and workloree changes, The SWorkforee
bison ation and Oppartunity Act’s grandfathering of antiquated structitre bus niade i
exceptionatly difticult w respond 1o the specific needs of our state,



e

Lpon approval of this requiest we will work 1o establish foeal volunteer worktoree Boards around
the <tate 1o pravide local inlormation and inpul regarding workforce needs m the area.

We st oxerted abow the possibitities Tor a revitahized warkforee development system given the
flexivility to organize in @ way that is most effective and efficient for Maine today, and not held
hustare by devisions that were made almost tventy vears ago. We will cut luyers of
administration and put more money where it matters, giving our citizens the skills they need to

cunpele.

[F vou have any questions or would like 10 discuss this further. please contact me or my
Commissioner of Labor, John Butera, at (207) 621-53093. We appreciate your consideration of
this request and fook forward to a posilive response,

Sinverels.

Paul R. [ePage

Giovernor

Ce: Vice President Michael Pence
John Butera, Commissioner of Labor





